Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Table of Contents

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)	3
Basic Financial Statements	
Government-wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	9
Statement of Activities	10
Fund Financial Statements	
Governmental Funds:	
Balance Sheet	11
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds	
to the Statement of Net Position	12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances	13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,	
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-	
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	14
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements	15
Required Supplementary Information	
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – General Fund	39
Note to Required Supplementary Information – Budget and Actual	40
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Information	41
Compliance	
Report on Internal Control Over Financial	
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters	
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in	
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	42
Schedule of Findings and Responses and Prior Audit Findings	44

DOCUMENT #8.2.1 (3.19.18)



3562 Round Barn Circle, Suite 300 Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 542-3343 Office (707) 527-5608 Fax pbllp.com

Independent Auditor's Report

Library Commission Sonoma County Library Santa Rosa, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sonoma County Library (the "Library"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"); this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Library as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison information, defined benefit pension plan information, and management's discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Pasente a Brinker LLP

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 6, 2018, on our consideration of the Library's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grants and agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Library's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Santa Rosa, California

February 6, 2018

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

As management of the Sonoma County Library (the "Library"), we offer readers of the Library's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Library for the fiscal year the ended June 30, 2017.

Financial Highlights

- The assets of the Library exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2017 by \$38,432 (net position). The Library's total net position increased by \$2,243,452 from the previous year.
- As of June 30, 2017, the Library's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of \$15,075,267, an increase of \$1,896,698 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 38% or \$5,722,741 is available for spending at the Library's discretion (unassigned fund balance).
- As of June 30, 2017, the unassigned fund balance for the general fund was \$5,702,349 or 30% of the total general fund expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction the Library's basic financial statements. The Library's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statement portions of this combined reporting format are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Library's finances, in a manner similar to the private business sector.

The *statement of net position* presents information on all of the Library's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Library is improving or deteriorating.

The *statement of activities* presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental Funds

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Library, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The Library's funds all fall under the category of governmental funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Library maintains five major governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and major special revenue funds (G.E. Cromwell, Leoleon Hopkins, Gifts & Donations, and Measure Y). Other Funds contains all of the non-major funds aggregated and presented in a single column.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found after the basic financial statement section of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

A schedule presenting budgetary comparison information for the Library's general fund is supplementary information required by generally accepted accounting principles and immediately follows the notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the Library, assets exceed liabilities by \$38,432 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

	For the Fiscal Yea	r Ended June 30, 201
	As of	As of
Summarized Statements of Net Position	June 30, 2017	June 30, 2016
Cash and investments	\$ 14,056,908	\$ 13,592,984
Other current assets	1,661,174	114,481
Capital assets, net	3,773,379	3,082,535
Total assets	19,491,461	16,790,000
Deferred outflows - pensions	6,009,513	3,426,735
Current liabilities	642,815	528,896
Non-current liabilities	22,221,719	17,690,961
Total liabilities	22,864,534	18,219,857
Deferred inflows - pensions	2,598,008	4,197,532
Net Pension		
Invested in capital assets	3,773,379	3,082,535
Restricted	5,267,039	3,009,209
Unrestricted	(9,001,986)	(8,292,398)
Total net position (deficit)	\$ 38,432	\$ (2,200,654)
	For the	For the
	year ended	year ended
Summarized Statements of Activities	June 30, 2017	June 30, 2016
Revenues		
Program revenues	\$ 1,096,447	\$ 871,310
Property taxes	18,332,120	17,155,821
Sales tax	2,235,270	-
Investment earnings	46,284	(1,750)
Intergovernmental	81,031	602,995
Other revenue	102,802	109,736
Total revenue	21,893,954	18,738,112
Expenses		
Personnel	13,720,264	11,561,725
Materials	2,038,341	1,868,725
Depreciation	216,094	229,378
Other program expenses	3,675,803	2,802,923
Total expenses	19,650,502	16,462,751
Increase in net position	2,243,452	2,275,361
Net position (deficit) at beginning of year, as restated	(2,205,020)	(4,476,015)
Net position (deficit) at the end of the year	\$ 38,432	\$ (2,200,654)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental Funds

General Fund

As previously mentioned, the Library uses funds to help control and manage money for particular purposes. The Library's general fund reported a fund balance of \$9,787,836 as of June 30, 2017 down from a balance of \$10,033,675 at the end of 2016. This decrease is primarily attributable to increased salaries and benefits from extended Library hours of operation beginning in April 2017. The Library Commission decided to add 12 additional hours per week after the successful passage of a sales tax measure in November 2016.

Special Revenue Funds

The changes in the special revenue funds from year to year were as follows:

- 1) G.E. Cromwell fund fund balance increased from \$746,271 to \$749,488 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The fund had a net investment income of \$3,217.
- 2) Leoleon Hopkins fund fund balance increased from \$979,933 to \$984,157 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The fund had a net investment income of \$4,224.
- 3) Gifts & Donations Fund fund balance increased from \$628,662 to \$700,182 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The fund had a net investment income of \$3,251 and grants and contributions in the amount of \$314,751 for the year. The fund also had expenditures in the amount of \$246,481.
- 4) Measure Y Fund The Measure Y fund accounts for the revenue and expenses associated with the Sonoma County Library Sales Tax Initiative, a sales tax measure passed in November of 2016. Collection of this sales tax, 1/8 cent, began on April 1, 2017 and is expected to generate approximately \$11 million dollars annually for the Library for the next ten years. The Library recognized approximately \$2.2 million in sales tax revenue for the year ending June 30, 2017. The fund balance at the end of 2017 is \$1,796,519.
- 5) Other Funds fund balance increased from \$790,029 to \$1,057,085 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The fund had total revenues of \$321,297. The fund also had expenditures in the amount of \$54,241.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Capital Assets

The Library's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2017, amounted to \$3,773,379 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, and equipment.

	Library's Capital Assets		
	(Net of De	epreciation)	
	2016	2017	
Land	\$ 207,000	\$ 207,000	
Buildings	2,590,781	2,869,137	
Vehicles	34,539	13,815	
Equipment	250,215	683,427	
Total capital assets, net	\$ 3,082,535	\$ 3,773,379	

Additional information on the Library's capital assets can be found in Note E to these financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

As of June 30, 2017 the Library had \$997,433 in compensated absence liabilities, \$13,668,158 in pension liabilities and \$7,556,128 post-employment benefit liabilities. The balances for these liabilities were \$882,018, \$9,876,681, \$6,932,262, respectively, for the year ending June 30, 2016. The Library administration and Commission recognize the importance of addressing the pension and post-employment obligations. The Library is current with its ongoing payments to the California Public Employees' Retirement System ("CalPERS"); the calculation of the rate being paid includes the unfunded liability. The Library is currently forming a committee to analyze and formulate a plan to address the other post-employment obligations. More detailed information about the Library's compensated absences is presented in Note B and J, the pension liability in Note F, and other post-employment benefits in Note G of the financial statements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were four variances between the budget and actuals that are worth noting for the year ended June 30, 2017. First, the actual tax revenue received was approximately \$700,000 higher than the budgeted amount because the property tax revenue increase was greater than anticipated. The actual expense for consulting services was higher than the budgeted amount by approximately \$115,000. This variance was the result of the completion of the facilities master plan and negotiations with SEIU taking longer than anticipated. The third area was for contracting services, which was approximately \$117,000 higher than the budgeted amount due to the cost of the large recruitment that took place in April and May. The fourth area was capital expenditures. The actual expenses were under budget by approximately \$300,000 due to the Northwest refresh being pushed to the 2017-18 fiscal year.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Economic Factors and New Year's Budget

The property tax revenue for fiscal year 2017-18 was originally expected to increase slightly, however; since the wildfires in October the property tax revenue is projected to be approximately the same as it was in 2016-17. The major difference in the Library's revenue stream is the 1/8 cent sales tax that was approved by the voters in November 2016. This additional revenue, approximately \$11.5 million per year, will allow the Library to open additional hours, provide more events, classes and learning opportunities for the public and improve the interiors of the buildings throughout the system.

The Library's combined fiscal 2017-18 budgets includes a refresh of the Northwest branch interior, expenses for the planning stage for the Petaluma branch interior improvement and costs for upgrading the technological infrastructure for the Library's internet and data lines.

Contacting the Library's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of the Library's finances and to show the Library's accountability for the money it receives. Any questions about this report or requests for additional information may be directed to Kenneth Nieman, Chief Financial Officer, 211 E Street, Santa Rosa, California 95404.

Basic Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position

	June 30, 2017
Assets	
Cash and investments	\$ 14,056,908
Accounts receivable	85,623
Sales tax receivable	1,563,300
Other assets	12,251
Capital assets not being depreciated	
Land	207,000
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)	
Building and improvements	2,869,137
Furnishings and equipment	683,427
Vehicles	13,815
Total capital assets, net	3,773,379
Total assets	19,491,461
Deferred Outflows of Resources Deferred pensions	6,009,513
Liabilities	
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	642,815
Noncurrent liabilities:	
Compensated absences	997,433
Net pension liability	13,668,158
Net obligation for post-employment benefits	7,556,128
Total liabilities	 22,864,534
Deferred Inflows of Resources	
Deferred pensions	2,598,008
Net Position	
Invested in capital assets	3,773,379
Restricted	5,267,039
Unrestricted (deficit)	(9,001,986)
Total net position	\$ 38,432

Statement of Activities

	For the Fiscal Year Ended J	June 30, 2017
Program expenses		
Personnel	\$	13,720,264
Materials		2,038,341
Depreciation		216,094
Other program expenses		3,675,803
Total program expenses		19,650,502
Program revenues		
Operating grants and contributions		684,304
Charges for fines, fees and services		412,143
Total program revenues		1,096,447
Net program expenses		18,554,055
General revenues		
Property taxes		18,332,120
Sales tax		2,235,270
Investment income, net		46,284
Intergovernmental		81,031
Other		102,802
Total general revenues		20,797,507
Increase in net position		2,243,452
Net position at June 30, 2016, as adjusted (Note E)		(2,205,020)
Net position at June 30, 2017	\$	38,432

Sonoma County Library

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Assets Cash and investments Accounts receivable Sales tax receivable Other assets	General Fund	C	G.E.		Spe	cial	Revenue Fu	ınds		
Cash and investments Accounts receivable Sales tax receivable		C	G.E.							
Cash and investments Accounts receivable Sales tax receivable			romwell		Leoleon Hopkins		Gifts & onations	Measure Y	Other	Total Governmental Funds
Cash and investments Accounts receivable Sales tax receivable										
Accounts receivable Sales tax receivable	\$10,340,930	\$	749,488	\$	984,157	\$	700,412	\$ 234,836	\$ 1,047,085	\$14,056,908
Sales tax receivable	70,623		-	-	-	-	15,000	-	-	85,623
			_		_		-	1,563,300	_	1,563,300
other assets	2,251		-				-	-	10,000	12,251
Total assets	\$10,413,804	\$	749,488	\$	984,157	\$	715,412	\$ 1,798,136	\$ 1,057,085	\$15,718,082
1										
Liabilities and fund balances Liabilities										
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 625,968	\$		\$		\$	15,230	\$ 1,617	€ -	\$ 642,815
Fund balances	\$ 023,908	Þ		Ф	_	Ψ	13,230	\$ 1,017	J	5 042,013
Committed:	252 (55									272 (57
Capital improvement	273,657		-		-		-	-	*	273,657
Stabilization fund	3,809,625		-		-		•	, -	-	3,809,625 2,205
Assigned	2,205		-		-		-	0.=	•	2,203
Restricted for:			740.400		004 157		24.027		450 170	2 210 752
Petaluma	•		749,488		984,157		34,937		450,170 342,749	2,218,752 627,155
Library System	-		3.5		-		284,406	-	342,749	
Southwest Santa Rosa - Roseland	-		0 - 1		-		150,003			150,003
Sonoma Valley			-		•		12,750		72,575	85,325
Cloverdale	-				-		(180) 5,577		69,959 58,960	69,779 64,537
Healdsburg	-		-		-				36,900	56,288
Santa Rosa - Northwest	-		-		-		56,288	V.=1	27,251	53,151
Santa Rosa - Central	•		-		-		25,900 40,825		27,231	40,825
Literacy					-		38,872	-		38,872
Rohnert Park	•		-		-		22,236	-	-	22,236
Santa Rosa - Rincon Valley	-						22,230	-	14,538	14,538
Wine Library History & Genealogy	-		-		-		10,580	-	14,550	10,580
			-				9,780	-		9,780
Windsor Guerneville	- - -		_		_		4,508	_		4,508
Sebastopol			-		_		3,700	_	491	4,191
Measure Y			-		_		-	1,796,519	-	1,796,519
Unassigned	5,702,349		-		_		-	1,790,319	20,392	5,722,741
Total fund balances	9,787,836		749,488		984,157		700,182	1,796,519	1,057,085	15,075,267
	\$10,413,804	\$	749,488	\$	984,157	\$	715,412	\$ 1,798,136	\$ 1,057,085	\$15,718,082

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

	June 30, 2017			
Total fund balances - governmental funds	\$	15,075,267		
Total net position reported in the statement of net position is different because:				
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds				
Capital assets, net		3,773,379		
Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the statement of net				
position but not reported in the governmental funds		6,009,513		
Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the statement of net				
position but not reported in the governmental funds		(2,598,008)		
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period				
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:				
Compensated absences		(997,433)		
Net pension liability		(13,668,158)		
Net obligation for post-employment benefits		(7,556,128)		
Total net position	\$	38,432		

Sonoma County Library

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3	e su,	2017	
----------------------------------	-------	------	--

				Sp	ecial	Revenue Fu	nds					
	General Fund	G.E. Cromwell				Gifts & Donations		Measure Y		Other	Gov	Total vernmental Funds
Revenues												
Property taxes	\$ 18,332,120	\$ -	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$		\$	18,332,120
Sales tax	-	=		-		-		2,235,270		(-)		2,235,270
Fines, fees												
and services	412,143	_		-		-		-		-		412,143
Intergovernmental	81,031	-		=		-		-		-		81,031
Investment income (loss), net	32,923	3,2	17	4,224		3,251		(1,903)		4,572		46,284
Grants and contributions	52,828	-				314,751				316,725		684,304
Other	102,802			-		-		-		-		102,802
Total revenues	19,013,847	3,2	17	4,224		318,002		2,233,367		321,297		21,893,954
Expenditures												
Current												12 271 000
Salaries and benefits	13,371,808	-		-		-				-		13,371,808
Operating	4,976,573	-		-		246,481		436,848		54,241		5,714,143
Capital outlay	911,305	-				-				-		911,305
Total expenditures	19,259,686	-		-		246,481		436,848		54,241		19,997,256
Excess of revenues												
over (under) expenditures	(245,839)	3,2	17	4,224		71,521		1,796,519		267,056		1,896,698
Fund balance at June 30, 2016	10,033,675	746,2	71	979,933		628,661		-		790,029		13,178,569
Fund balance at June 30, 2017	\$ 9,787,836	\$ 749,4	88 \$	984,157	\$	700,182	\$	1,796,519	\$	1,057,085	\$	15,075,267

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:	
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds:	\$ 1,896,698
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:	
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense (\$216,094) exceeded capital	(A.A.)
(\$911,305) outlay in the current period.	695,211
Certain pension expenses in the statement of activities do not require the	
the use of current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.	390,825
The change in compensated absences reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of current financial resources and therefore, is	
not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.	(115,415)
The change in the net obligation for post-employment benefits in the statement activities does not require the use of current financial resources and	
therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.	(623,867)
Increase in net position of governmental activities	\$ 2,243,452

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

The notes to the basic financial statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes considered essential to fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of the Sonoma County Library as follows:

Note A. Defining the Financial Reporting Entity

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note C. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Note D. Cash and Investments

Note E. Capital Assets

Note F. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Note G. Other Post Employment Benefits

Note H. Deferred Compensation Plan

Note I. Commitments

Note J. Long Term Obligations

Note K. Insurance

Note L. Related Party Transactions

Note M. Measure Y Sales Tax Revenues

Note N. Future Governmental Accounting Standards

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note A. Defining the Financial Reporting Entity

The Sonoma County Library (the "Library") is a joint powers agency established between the County of Sonoma (the "County") and cities in 1975 to provide library service on an equal basis throughout the County. On August 1, 2014, the joint powers agreement of the Library was amended. This amendment made changes to the governing body of the Library and ceased the Library's treatment as a component unit of the County of Sonoma. A full copy of the amended and restated JPA can be found on the Library's website at www.sonomacountylibrary.org.

The Library Joint Powers Authority (JPA) is now governed by an eleven-member Library Commission (the "Commission") which includes one appointee of the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors, one appointee each from the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, and Sonoma, one appointee from the town of Windsor and one appointee jointly elected by the city of Santa Rosa and the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors.

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) display information on the Library as a whole. These financial statements include the financial activities of the Library's non fiduciary activities. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. The Library does not have any activities that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the government activities of the Library at year end. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Program expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

During the year, the Library segregates transactions in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the Library at a more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. The major funds are presented in separate columns. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the Library are included on the statement of net position. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Revenues from grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Taxes other than property taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within ninety days of the end of the accounting period. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The Library reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the principal fund of the Library. General tax revenues and other sources of revenue used to finance the fundamental operations of the Library are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures are paid from this fund.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

G.E. Cromwell Fund

The G. E. Cromwell Fund is a major fund and was established in 1987. The funds are to be used for substantial enrichment and/or enhancement of the Petaluma Library in the areas of facilities, collections, and services.

Leoleon Hopkins Fund

The Leoleon Hopkins Fund is a major fund and was established in 2004. The funds are to be used for the substantial enrichment and/or enhancement of the Petaluma Library in the areas of facilities, collections, and services.

Gifts & Donations Fund

The Gifts and Donations Fund is a major fund and includes donations and various other gifts. The funds are used for various Library projects, programs, collections and services.

Measure Y Fund

The Measure Y fund is a major fund that was established after the Sonoma County Library Sales Tax Initiative was passed in November 2016. The 1/8 cent sales tax began on April 1, 2017 and funds are exclusively used to supplement existing funding for library operations, maintaining and enhancing library hours, programs, acquisitions and, construction and modernization.

Other special revenue funds of the Library are non-major funds. Other special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are assigned to expenditures for particular purposes.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed as needed. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental fund types. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of the fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during subsequent years.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Investments

The Library's operating cash is pooled with the Sonoma County Treasurer except for other cash which consists of petty cash and a payroll clearing account. The County Treasurer also acts as disbursing agent for the Library.

Investments are stated at fair value in the statement of net position and the corresponding changes in fair value of investments are recognized in the year in which the change occurred. The fair value of investments is determined quarterly. Realized and unrealized gains or losses and interest earned on pooled investments are allocated quarterly to the appropriate funds based on their respective average daily balance for that quarter.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements, vehicles, furnishings and equipment, are reported in the government –wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Library as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than \$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the Library, except land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings	50 years
Building improvements	30 years
Vehicles	5 years
Furnishings and equipment	5 years
Equipment under capital lease	5 years

The Library's collection of library books is not capitalized. This collection is unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for and preserved, and subject to the Library's policy that requires proceeds from the sale of these items to be used to acquire other collection items.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Compensated Absences

Library employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment. Employees may accumulate earned vacation benefits that can be accrued up to a maximum of 240 to 280 hours per employee based on years of service. Accumulation of vacation time in excess of this limit may be granted upon recommendation of the Director with confirmation by the Commission. Terminated employees are entitled to full payment of unused vacation benefits.

Employees may also accumulate unused sick leave benefits without limit. Accumulated sick leave benefits may convert to compensatory time for up to a maximum of four days determined by a sliding scale based on actual sick days used during the previous year. Employees separated from Library service, for reasons other than disability, may receive payment of 25% of the monetary equivalent of their accumulated unused sick leave benefit, not to exceed 500 hours. Employees separated from Library service due to disability may receive full payment for all unused sick leave. Employees retiring from the Library may choose to receive payment as described above or to have unused sick leave converted to additional service credit as provided by the Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS").

A liability is calculated for all of the costs of compensated absences based upon benefits earned by employees in the current period for which there is a probability of payment at termination. The salary and related payroll costs used to calculate the liability are those in effect as of June 30, 2017. Because vacation and sick leave balances do not require the use of current financial resources, no liability is recorded within the governmental funds. However, this liability is reflected in the government-wide statement of net position.

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflow of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that time.

The Library's employee retirement plan qualifies for reporting in this category. Refer to Note F for additional information on deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Net Position – Government-wide Financial Statements

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. "Net position invested in capital assets," consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition construction or improvement of those assets. "Restricted net position" is reported as restricted if the use is constrained to a particular purpose. Restrictions are imposed by external organizations such as federal or state laws. "Unrestricted net position" consists of all other net position that does not meet the definition of the above two components and is available for general use by the Library.

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report fund balances in specifically defined classifications in accordance with the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The Library classifies fund balances in to the following five categories:

Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not spendable in form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of the Library's highest level of decision making authority (the Library Commission) and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying action that imposed the limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting period.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (continued)

Assigned fund balance – amounts that are constrained by the Library's intent to be used for specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision making, or by a body or an official designated for that purpose.

Unassigned fund balance – the residual classification for the Library's General Fund that includes amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned classification is used only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes.

The Library Commission establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent budget amendments that occur throughout the year.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Library's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Balance Policy

The Library believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be retained by the Library to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial base, the Library needs to maintain unrestricted fund balance in its general fund sufficient to fund cash flows of the Library and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances are considered unrestricted.

The purpose of the Library's fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to protect against temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures.

The Library's committed fund balances are comprised of the following:

Capital improvement – The Library has adopted a policy to pay for priority projects to expand and/or improve the Library's services through the creation of new buildings/facilities, the addition of major new technology, or renovation of existing facilities. The funds in this category are determined using the Library's budget process and are based on its capital improvement plan.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund Balance Policy (continued)

Stabilization fund – The Library has adopted a policy and established a committed fund balance known as the stabilization fund. The stabilization fund is to be no less than 12.5% of the Library's annual operating expenditures in the current year's budget. The purpose of the Library's stabilization fund is (1) to insulate the Library program and service levels from large unanticipated one-time expenditures due to unforeseen circumstance and (2) to temporarily insulate the Library's programs and service levels from slower revenue growth that typically occurs during an economic recession. The allowable uses of the stabilization fund are as follows:

Emergency reserves – Half of the stabilization fund, or 6.25% of the Library's approved operating expenditures for the current fiscal, year, will be used in the case of unforeseen emergencies, including natural and man-made disasters, unanticipated major repairs or replacement of capital assets, or other cases in which the Library is faced with funding a large, unanticipated expenditure. Emergency reserves must begin to be restored during the next budgeted year, and the Library Director shall present a plan for the restoration within three months of its use.

Counter-cyclical reserves – the balance of the stabilization fund, or 6.25% of the Library's approved operating expenditures for the current fiscal year, may be used if the property tax projections fall below the level of the previous year. The reserves may only be used to maintain current expenditure levels and provide bridge financing during the first eighteen months of an economic downturn. Counter-cyclical reserves must begin to be restored within twenty-four months of their first use, and the Library Director shall present a plan for restoration within eighteen months of its use.

Interfund Transactions

The following is a description of the basic types of interfund transactions and the related accounting policies:

- Quasi-external (charges for current services) Transactions for services rendered or facilities provided. These transactions are recorded as revenue in the receiving fund and expenditures in the disbursing fund.
- 2) Non-operating transfers Transactions to allocate resources from one fund to another fund not contingent on the incurrence of specific expenditures in the receiving fund. These transactions are recorded as transfers in and out in the same accounting period.

These amounts are eliminated in the statement of actives.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property Taxes

Property taxes, including tax rates, are regulated by the State and are administered locally by the County. The County is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with state law. The County is also responsible for the allocation of property taxes to the Library. Article XIII of the California Constitution (more commonly known as Proposition 13) limits ad valorem taxes on real property to 1% of value plus taxes necessary to pay indebtedness approved by voters prior to July 1, 1978. The Article also established the 1975/76 assessed valuation as the basis and limits annual increases to the cost of living, not to exceed 2%, for each year thereafter. Property may also be reassessed to full market value after a sale, transfer of ownership, or completion of new construction. The State is prohibited under the Article from imposing new ad valorem, sales, or transactions taxes on real property. Local government may impose special taxes (except on real property) with the approval of two-thirds of the qualified electors.

The County has adopted the Teeter alternative Method of Property Tax Allocation known as the "Teeter Plan." The State Revenue and Taxation code allows counties to distribute secured real property and supplemental property taxes on an accrual basis resulting in full payment to the Library each fiscal year. Any subsequent delinquent payments and related penalties and interest will revert to the County.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue when they are levied for because they are considered to be both measurable and available. Liens on real property are established January 1 for the ensuing fiscal year. The property tax is levied as of July 1 on all taxable property located in the County. Secured property taxes are due in two equal installments on November 1 and February 1, and are delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Additionally, supplemental property taxes are levied on a pro rata basis when changes in assessed valuation occur due to sales transactions or the completion of construction. Property tax collection and valuation information is also disclosed in the County of Sonoma Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Sales Tax Revenue and Receivable

Sales tax receivable represents the sales tax amount allocated to the Library through Measure Y as discussed in Note N below, but uncollected at year end. Due to the nature of the sales tax receivable, management does not consider any portion uncollectible.

Sales tax revenues are presented net of administrative assessments by the State Board of Equalization in the amount of \$123,990.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

The following Governmental Standards Board (GASB) Statement has been implemented in the current financial statements:

Statement No. 82

"Pension Issues"

Effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15 2016, this statement

addresses, among other things:

presentation of payroll - related measures in required supplementary information; selection of assumptions and treatment of deviations from guidance in Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial purposes; and classification of payments made by employers to satisfy plan member contribution requirements.

Rent Expense

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 amounted to \$51,511.

Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note C. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The Library Commission approves an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund to be effective July 1st for the ensuing fiscal year. The Library Director is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any character (group of accounts); however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by the Library Commission. Annual appropriations that have not been encumbered lapse at year-end. Budgetary data is presented as required supplementary information in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General fund.

Note D. Cash and Investments

The Library follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds with the Sonoma County Treasurer except for petty cash and a payroll clearing account.

Investment Guidelines and Authorized Investments

The Library's pooled cash and investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines established by the Sonoma County Treasurer and approved by the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors. The objectives of the policy are, in order of priority: safety of capital, liquidity, and maximum rate of return. The policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the County will deposit funds, types of investment instruments as permitted by the California Government Code, and the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note D. Cash and Investments (continued)

Investment Guidelines and Authorized Investments (continued)

Permitted investments include the following:

- U.S. Treasury and Federal agency securities
- Bonds issued by local agencies
- Registered State warrants and municipal notes
- Negotiable certificates of deposit
- Bankers' acceptances
- Commercial paper
- Medium-term corporate notes
- Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) demand deposits
- Repurchase agreements
- Reverse repurchase agreements
- Shares of a mutual fund average life
- Mutual funds and money market mutual funds
- Collateralized mortgage obligations
- Collateralized time deposits
- Joint powers authority pools
- Investment Trust of California (Caltrust)

A copy of the County Investment Policy is available upon request from the Treasurer at 585 Fiscal Drive, Room 100, Santa Rosa, California, 95403.

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying statement of net position as follows:

Investment in Sonoma County Treasury Pool	\$14,012,882
Other cash	44,026
	\$14,056,908

Investment in County Treasurer's Pooled Cash

As of June 30, 2017, the Library's investments in the Treasury Pool managed by the County Treasurer has a weighted average maturity of approximately twelve months. The credit rating and other information regarding the Treasury Pool for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 will be disclosed in the County of Sonoma's June 30, 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note D. Cash and Investments (continued)

Investment in County Treasurer's Pooled Cash (continued)

The net decrease in the fair value of the Library's investments in the Treasury Pool during fiscal year June 30, 2017, was \$73,542 and is included in investments earnings. This amount takes into account all changes in fair value (including purchase and sales) that occurred during the year. The net unrealized loss on investments held at year end amounted to (\$55,479). The realized gains and losses from securities matured during the current fiscal year are recognized through the net change in the fair value of the investments held in the Treasury Pool.

The net decrease in fair value of investments by fund, and included in revenue – investment income (loss) for the year ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:

General Fund	\$(53,181)
G.E. Cromwell Fund	(4,004)
Leoleon Hopkins Fund	(5,258)
Gifts & Donations Fund	(4,239)
Measure Y Fund	(1,184)
Other Funds	(5,676)
	\$(73,542)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value is to changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2017, the Library had no investments other than the cash and investments pooled with the County Treasury.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note D. Cash and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (continued)

The California Government code and the County's invest policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the state or local governmental unit. California law also allows financial institutions to secure the Library's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. The California Government Code also limits the total of all securities lending transactions to 20% of the fair value of the investment portfolio.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Library maintains other cash in a financial institution insured up to \$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). At times, the cash balance may exceed the FDIC insurance coverage amount. Amounts in excess of the FDIC insurance coverage are collateralized. At June 30, 2017 the bank balance of cash held by the financial institution did not exceed the federal deposit insurance limit.

Fair Value Measurements

The Library categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 input are significant unobservable inputs. The Library has a recurring fair value measurement for its investment in the Sonoma Country Treasury Pool which is valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2).

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

	Jı	aly 1, 2016							
	(adjusted)		Increase	De	Decrease		June 30, 2017		
Capital assets, not being depreciated:	\$	207,000	\$ -	\$		\$	207,000		
Capital assets, being depreciated:			1000						
Buildings and improvements		3,767,527	376,547		-		4,144,074		
Vehicles		149,941	-		24				149,941
Furnishings and equipment		1,456,964	534,758		-		1,991,722		
Total capital assets being depreciated		5,374,432	911,305		-		6,285,737		
Less accumulated depreciation for:									
Buildings and improvements		1,165,198	109,739		1=		1,274,937		
Vehicles		129,219	6,907		-		136,126		
Furnishings and equipment		1,208,847	99,448		-		1,308,295		
Total accumulated depreciation		2,503,264	216,094	0	-		2,719,358		
Total capital assets being depreciated, net		2,871,168	695,211		9 2 0		3,566,379		
Total capital assets, net	\$	3,078,168	\$695,211	\$	-	\$	3,773,379		

The July 1, 2016 balance reflects a net opening balance adjustment of \$4,366 related to the physical inventory performed during the current fiscal year. Depreciation expense relating to governmental activities amounted to \$216,094 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

As previously stated at June 30, 2016	\$ 2,200,654
Net position opening balance adjustment	4,366
Net position at June 30, 2016, as adjusted	\$ 2,205,020

Note F. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Library contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS"), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and county ordinance. Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from its executive office: 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note F. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

In September 2012, Governor Brown signed the Public Employer Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA"). PEPRA went into effect on January 1, 2013. The impact of PEPRA on the Library retirement benefits is that all new employees are mandated into a new tier of PERS retirement benefits titled 2.0% at age 62. As of June 30, 2017, there were 99 covered employees under the 2.0% at 55 plan and 78 covered employees under the 2.0% at 62 plan.

Funding Policy

Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. The Library is also required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate for the year ended June 30, 2017, was 19.304% for the annual covered payroll and was established by PERS in connection with the June 30, 2014 actuarial study. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Library are established and may be amended by PERS.

Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions.

At June 30, 2017, the Library reported a liability of \$13,668,158 for its net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The measurement date is June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Library recognized pension expense of \$1,260,426 in the government-wide statements. Pension expense represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or methods, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2017, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources in the amount of \$6,009,513 of which \$1,651,251 related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date. \$4,358,262 of deferred outflows and \$2,598,008 of deferred inflows relate to differences between the expected and actual experience of the plan.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note F. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions.(continued)

The \$1,651,251 of deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (reduction of expense) as follows:

Year ending June 30,	Deferred (inflow) Outflow	
2018	\$	(368,665)
2019		232,375
2020		1,211,041
2021		685,503
	\$	1,760,254

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The assumptions included in the June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation were: (a) 7.50% investment rate of return, (b) projected annual salary increases depending on age, service and type of employment, and (c) 3.00% payroll growth. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.75%.

Sensitivity of the Library's Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the net pension liability as of the June 30, 2016 measurement date was 7.65%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.

The Library's share of the net pension liability calculated as of June 30, 2016, the measurement date, using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.65%) would result in a net pension liability of \$20,733,413 and using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point higher (8.65%) would result in a net pension liability of \$7,699,907 for that same measurement date.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note G. Other Post Employment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note F, the Library provides other post employment benefits ("OPEB") for retired employees.

Plan Description

The Library provides health insurance benefits to all career employees who have retired as of July 1, 1983, and thereafter at the same level of benefits as those being provided for current career employees and in accordance with the schedule of payments for the same. Any Library employee newly hired or rehired by the Library after July 1, 1997, will receive this benefit after employment with the Library for at least 10 years (including coverage for the dependent spouse or domestic partner). Employees hired after October 18, 2013 must have at least 15 years of service. For employees hired between July 1, 1997 and October 18, 2013 that complete at least 20 years of service the Library will contribute to the cost of one dependent (spouse or domestic partner). The Library contributes 80% to 84% of the cost towards the retiree's health insurance benefit, depending on employee classifications. This benefit is provided by Library Commission approval of the employee labor union Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of OPEB plan members and the Library are established and may be amended by agreement of the Library commission and employee labor union. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to fund benefits as determined annually by the Library Commission. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Library contributed \$723,479 which includes the current pay-as-you-go portion of the current premium, plus an additional \$150,000. OPEB plan members receiving benefits are currently not required to contribute.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Library's annual OPEB cost (expense) is a calculated based on the annual required contribution (the "ARC") of the Library, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note G. Other Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (continued)

The following table shows the components of the Library's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Library's net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution	\$ 1,317,551
Interest on net OPEB obligation	340,310
Adjustment to annual required contribution	(310,516)
Annual OPEB cost	1,347,345
Contributions made	(723,479)
Increase in net OPEB obligation	623,866
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year	 6,932,262
Net OPEB obligation - end of year	\$ 7,556,128
a sala magazar a magazar da sala da	 , ,

The Library's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the two preceding years were as follows (in thousands):

		Percentage of	
Fiscal	Annual	Annual OPEB Cost	Net OPEB
Year Ended	OPEB Cost	Contributed	Obligation
June 30, 2015	\$1,313	83.1%	\$6,662
June 30, 2016	\$1,323	79.6%	\$6,932
June 30, 2017	\$1,347	53.7%	\$7,556

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was \$20,191,874, and the actuarial value of assets was \$1,116,968, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL") of \$19,074,906. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was \$8,603,411, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was approximately 219%.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note G. Other Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal funding method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 5% rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, projected salary increases of 3% and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4% - 6% per year. All rates included a 3% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2017, was 30 years.

Note H. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Library has established two deferred compensation plans (the "Plans") created in accordance with California Government Code Section 53212 and Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plans permit employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Additionally, in lieu of Social Security and in accordance with FICA requirements, the Library uses these plans to provide a deferred compensation plan for part-time, seasonal and temporary employees who are not eligible for CalPERS. The contribution rates are 4.5% for the employer and 3% for the employee.

The Plans' assets are held by CalPERS and Nationwide for the exclusive benefit of the employees and their beneficiaries and therefore, are not recorded as assets of the Library. Each employee directs the investment of the assets in his or her account.

Sonoma County Library

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note I. Commitments

Operating Leases

The Library leases copiers for its branches under an operating lease agreement that expires in 2019. The minimum monthly lease payment for the copiers amounts to approximately \$2,750, which includes service.

The Library leases space for its Forestville library facility under a month to month lease, with an 18-month termination clause which requires minimum monthly lease payments of approximately \$427. Additionally, on July 1, 2015, the Library entered into two separate 24-month leases for its Occidental library facilities. The minimum monthly lease payments amount to \$555 and \$530 for these leases.

Future minimum lease payments under the above referenced operating leases as of June 30, 2017, were as follows:

* *				20
Year	end	ınσ	lune	3()
1 Cui	CITA	11115	June	50.

2018	\$ 45,315
2019	6,572
	\$ 51,887

Note J. Long-Term Obligations

A summary of changes in long-term obligations for the governmental activities is as follows:

									Amo	ounts
	E	Balance					В	Balance	Due '	Within
	Ju	y 1, 2016	I	ncrease	Dec	crease	June	e 30, 2017	One	Year
Compensated absences	\$	882,017	\$	115,416	\$	-	\$	997,433	\$	-

Note K. Insurance

The Library carries commercial insurance for all significant risks of loss which include public official liability, general liability, property and workers' compensation insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note L. Related Party Transactions

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Library contracted with the County of Sonoma for services related to maintaining the Library's general ledger, legal advice, project management and for access to service yards and fuel. Total expenditures for such services amounted to \$469,989.

Note M. Measure Y Sales Tax Revenues

The Measure Y Special Revenue Fund was created in November 2016 with the passage of the Sonoma County Library Maintenance, Restoration and Enhancement Act to account for the related sales tax revenues and expenditures of Measure Y. Measure Y is funded by a one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) sales tax in Sonoma County and created a stable funding source to supplement existing funding for library operations.

According to the Sonoma County Library Maintenance, Restoration and Enhancement Act sales tax revenue should be used for the following:

- Maintaining and enhancing library hours and programs
- Reversing the deterioration in services at existing libraries
- Upgrading and maintaining facilities services and collections throughout the incorporated and unincorporated territory of the County

Note N. Future Governmental Accounting Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has released the following new standards:

Statement No. 75

"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans other than Pensions" Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and governmental employees. This local Statement establishes standards recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred of resources. expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note N. Future Governmental Accounting Standards (continued)

Statement "Certain Asset
No. 83 Retirement Obligations"

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

Statement No. 85

"Omnibus 2017"

Effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017, this statement addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This also addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]).

Statement No. 87

"Leases"

Effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, this statement better meets the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.

The impact on the basic financial statements of the Library of these pronouncements which have not yet been adopted is unknown at this time.

Required Supplementary Information

Sonoma County Library

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual - General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

	Budgeted	Amounts		Variance with Final Budget	
			Actual	Positive	
	Original	Final	Amounts	(Negative)	
Revenues					
Property taxes	\$ 17,424,477	\$ 17,424,477	\$ 18,332,120	\$ 907,643	
Fines, fees					
and services	460,000	460,000	412,143	(47,857)	
Intergovernmental	225,980	225,980	81,031	(144,949)	
Investment earnings (losses)	21,000	21,000	32,923	11,923	
Grants and contributions	33,000	33,000	52,828	19,828	
Other revenue	45,543	45,543	102,802	57,259	
Total revenues	18,210,000	18,210,000	19,013,847	803,847	
Expenditures					
Current					
Salaries and employee benefits	13,440,917	13,440,917	13,371,808	69,109	
Operating	4,819,083	4,819,083	4,976,573	(157,490)	
Capital outlay	1,100,000	1,236,000	911,305	324,695	
Total expenditures	19,360,000	19,496,000	19,259,686	236,314	
Excess (deficiency) of revenues					
over expenditures	(1,150,000)	(1,286,000)	(245,839)	1,040,161	
Net change in fund balance	\$ (1,150,000)	\$ (1,286,000)	(245,839)	\$ 1,040,161	
The change in fund balance	Ţ (1,111,300)	. (-,,,	. , , , , ,		
Fund balance at beginning of year			10,033,675		
Fund balance at end of year			\$ 9,787,836		

DOCUMENT #8.2.1 (3.19.18)

Sonoma County Library

Note to the Required Supplementary Information - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note A. Budgetary Accounting

Budgetary revenue estimates represent original estimates modified for any authorized adjustment which was contingent upon new or additional revenue sources. Budgetary expenditure amounts represent original appropriations adjusted by budget transfers and authorized appropriation adjustments made during the year. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The Library's budgetary information was amended during the year by the Commission.

Sonoma County Library

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Information

Measurement period ended June 30,		2016		2015
Total Pension Liability:	Ф	1 400 654	Φ	1 442 707
Service Cost	\$	1,423,654	\$	1,442,797
Interest		4,453,116		4,248,946
Difference between expected and actual experience		93,423		(1,492,564)
Changes in Benefit Terms		-		-
Changes in Assumptions		-		(911,611)
Benefit Payments including refunds of				
employee contributions		(3,281,136)		(2,932,286)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability		2,689,057		355,282
Total Pension Liability - Beginning		59,045,970		58,690,688
Total Pension Liability - Ending (A)	\$	61,735,027	\$	59,045,970
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:				
Contributions - Employer	\$	1,352,442	\$	1,195,632
Contributions - Employee	Ψ	578,623	Ψ	511,408
Net Investment Income		277,617		1,134,413
Other Miscellaneous Income				-
Benefit Payments including refunds of				
employee contributions		(3,281,136)		(2,932,286)
Plan to Plan Resource Movement		_		3,532
Administrative Expense		(29,966)		(55,330)
N. Cl		(1.102.420)		(142 621)
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position		(1,102,420) 49,169,289		(142,631) 49,311,920
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning		49,109,209		49,311,920
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (B)	\$	48,066,869	\$	49,169,289
Plan Net Pension Liability / (Asset) - (a)-(b)	\$	13,668,158	\$	9,876,681
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total				
Pension Liability		77.86%		83.27%
Covered-Employee Payroll	\$	7,818,837	\$	7,758,220
Plan Net Pension Liability / (Asset) as a				
Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll		174.81%		127.31%

Compliance

DOCUMENT #8.2.1 (3.19.18)



3562 Round Barn Circle, Suite 300 Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 542-3343 Office (707) 527-5608 Fax pbllp.com

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*

Independent Auditor's Report

Library Commission Sonoma County Library Santa Rosa, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sonoma County Library (the "Library"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 6, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Library's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Library's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Analogoparductily owned that have RSM US Alliance RSM

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* (continued)

Printe a Brinker LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Library's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Library's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Santa Rosa, California February 6, 2018

Sonoma County Library

Schedule of Findings and Responses and Prior Audit Findings

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

I. Findings and Responses

No matters are reportable.

II. Prior audit findings

Finding: 2016-01

Lack of physical inventory of capital assets and unreconciled variances between the general ledger and the capital asset subsidiary ledger

Status: A physical inventory count was completed as of June 30, 2017.